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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

FOR THE DISTRICT OF IDAHO 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 
COMMISSION, BECKY TURNER, MERRIBETH 
PARRIS HICKS, TROY HURLEY, SARAH JOHNSON 
AND CAROL MAYER, 

Plaintiffs, 

CASE NO. CIVOO-570-E-BLW 

CONSOLIDA TED COMPLAINT AND 
DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL BY 
PLAINTIFFS BECKY TURNER, 

MERRIBETH PARRIS HICKS, TROY 

v. 

J. C. PENNEY COMPANY, INC., CHRISTOPHER 
GEE, PAT BOYCE and JOHN AND JANE DOE NOS. 
1-5 

Defendants. 

HURLEY, SARAH JOHNSON AND 
CAROL MAYER 

SECTION A - COMPLAINT OF BECKY TURNER 

COMES NOW the Plaintit1~ Becky Turner, by and through her counsel, the law 

firm of Hopkins Roden Crockett Hansen & Hoopes, PLLC, and for cause of action against the 

above-named Defendants complains and alleges as follows: 

PARTIES. JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

I. PlaintitT Becky Turner is, and at all times material hereto was, an 

individual residing in Bonneville County, Idaho. During the period when the various acts alleged 
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in this Complaint occurred, PlaintiffTumer was employed by the Defendant, J. C. Penney 

Company, Inc., at the beauty salon (hereinafter the "Salon") in its Idaho Falls, Idaho store. 

2. Defendant 1. C. Penney Company, Inc., (hereinafter "J. C. Penney") is a 

Delaware corporation which at all times material hereto conducted business in the State of the 

Idaho and maintained, operated and conducted business through the aforementioned Idaho Falls, 

Idaho store. J.C. Penney is, and at all times material hereto was, an employer engaging in an 

industry affecting commerce, employing more than 500 employees. 

3. Defendant Christopher Gee is, and at times material hereto was, an 

individual residing in Idaho. Throughout the course of Turner's employment at the Salon, 

Defendant Gee was the Styling Salon Manager and her immediate supervisor. The acts of 

Defendant Gee during the course and scope of his employment with Defendant J. C. Penney, 

including those which serve as the basis for the claims stated in this Complaint, are imputed to J. 

C. Penney. 

4. John and Jane Doe Defendants 1-5 are other persons or entities who are 

liable or responsible to Plaintiff Turner, either directly or on theories of vicarious liability, for the 

damages sought. The identity of the John and Jane Doe Defendants is presently unknown. At 

such time as the identity and status of the John and Jane Doe Defendants is or becomes known, 

Plaintiff Turner shall seek leave of the Court to amend this Complaint to specifically name the 

John and Jane Doe Defendants, with such amendment to relate back to the date of filing herein. 

5. This Complaint and the causes of action it sets forth arise chiefly out of 

events, acts and occurrences which took place in Bonneville County, Idaho and which occurred 
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during the period Plaintiff Turner was employed by J. C. Penney at the Salon in its Idaho Falls, 

Idaho store. 

6. The Plaintiff, Equal Employment Opportunity Commission ("EEOC"), 

previously invoked this Court's jurisdiction pursuant to U.S.C. §§ 451,1331,1337,1343 and 

1345 and instituted this action pursuant to Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as codified 

and amended, 42 U.S.c. §2000(e) et seq. (,Title VII"), and Section 102 of the Civil Rights Act 

of 1991 as codified and amended, 42 U.S.c. §1981a ("Section 198Ia"). This Court has subject 

matter jurisdiction over Plaintiff Turner's Title VII and Section 1981a claims pursuant to 28 

U.S.c. § 1331. 

7. Plaintiff Turner also alleges that Defendants J.c. Penney and Gee violated 

her rights under the Idaho Human Rights Act ("IHRA"), Idaho Code § 67-5901 et seq. and under 

common law. Under 28 U.S.c. § 1367, this Court has supplemental jurisdiction over these IHRA 

and common law claims even though they do not themselves involve a federal question within 

the meaning of 28 U .S.c. § 1331. 

COUNT I--GENDER DISCRIMINATION. SEXUAL HARASSMENT 
AND CONSTRUCTIVE DISCHARGE 

8. Plaintiff Turner incorporates by this reference the allegations of 

Paragraphs 1-7, above, as though the same were here set forth in full. 

9. Plaintiff Turner was employed by Defendant J.c. Penney at the Salon in its 

Idaho Falls, Idaho store. Her work there commenced on or about June 23, 1996 and continued 

until approximately the end of October, 1998. 

10. Throughout the course of her employment at the Salon, Plaintiff Turner 
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worked under and was supervised by Defendant Gee, the Styling Salon Manager. 

11. During the entire course of Plaintiff Turner's employment with Defendant 

1. e. Penney, Defendants Gee and J.e. Penney subjected her and several of her co-workers in the 

Salon to a continuing course of obscene, offensive, degrading and intimidating comments and 

physical acts of a sexual nature. These comments and acts included, among others, the 

following: 

A. Mr. Gee was continually telling Plaintiff Turner graphic sexual 

stories, requesting sexual favors, and making other sexually oriented comments 

toward Plaintiff Turner and her co-workers. Mr. Gee's comments included 

comments about Plaintiff Turner and others giving him oral sex or having sex 

with him, or about the Plaintiff Turner's children doing those things. For 

instance, Mr. Gee repeatedly told Plaintiff Turner that he wanted to see her 

daughter wearing lingerie or a bikini. He continually invited Plaintiff Turner to 

have sex with him. He frequently told other employees that Plaintiff Turner had 

engaged in sexual relations with him. He mocked her about the young age at 

which she had her first child. He spoke on repeated occasions about his sexual 

conquest of various other employees at the Salon. He made several comments 

about his desire to have anal intercourse with men. He described his sexual 

activities with his wife. 

B. Mr. Gee's sexual comments and requests were frequently tied 

directly to her rcquests for time off, scheduling accommodations, or other job 
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benefits. There were many occasions when Plaintiff Turner asked for time off or 

for other tangible employment benefits when Mr. Gee responded that he would 

accommodate her ifhe could have sexual relations with her. Plaintiff Turner 

repeatedly heard Mr. Gee make similar demands of other co-workers. For 

example, on one occasion, Turner approached Mr. Gee to request that her work 

schedule be arranged to allow her to receive a necessary medical operation. Mr. 

Gee responded by requesting a sexual favor in return. When she rejected that 

proposal, he refused to make any accommodation, and Plaintiff Turner was forced 

to find a replacement on her own. 

C. Mr. Gee treated favorably those employees who submitted to his sexual 

propositions and/or tolerated his offensive language, while treating those who 

would not with contempt. Specifically, he gave better working hours, better job 

assignments, and more referral business, which meant significantly greater 

opportunities and compensation, to employees who went along with his behavior. 

12. Plaintiff Turner reported Mr. Gee's sexual harassment to Carol Mayer, the 

Loss Prevention Manager at J. C. Penney's Idaho Falls store who reported it to Pat Boyce, the 

Store Manager. In addition, other victims reported Mr. Gee's behavior and the sexually hostile 

environment which existed in the Salon to other members of 1. C. Penney management before, 

during and after Plaintiff Turner's employment. These included some complaints to the Store 

Manager, Pat Boyce, and her predecessor. When those reports were made, it was foreseeable that 

Plaintiff Turner would suffer continued harm from Defendant Gee. Nevertheless, Boyce and 
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J.c. Penney pernlitted Mr. Gee to remain in his position as the Salon Styling Manager and to 

exercise supervisory control over Plaintiff Turner and other victims long after they became aware 

of his behavior. Consequently, Plaintiff Turner continued to suffer damages. 

13. Plaintiff Turner feared that further pursuing her complaint about Mr. Gee's 

actions would not likely result in corrective measures by 1. C. Penney, but rather would probably 

result in Mr. Gee and/or other members of J. C. Penney management retaliating against her. 

14. Defendant Gee's obscene and abusive comments and behavior were not 

welcomed or appreciated by Plaintiff Turner, and altered the conditions of her employment by 

creating a hostile and offensive work environment. 

15. Faced with the prospect of having to continue to endure such conditions, 

Plaintiff Turner had no choice but to resign from her job. 

16. The sexual harassment, ongoing hostile work environment, gender 

discrimination and retaliation endured by Plaintiff Turner and her resulting constructive 

discharge from her employment with J. C. Penney were unlawful and constituted repeated and 

serious violations ofthc following: (1) Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 as codified and 

amended, 42 U.S.c. § 2000e et seq. (hereinafter 'Title VII"); and (2) the Idaho Human Rights 

Act as codified and amended, 67-590 I et seq. (hereinafter the "IHRA"). 

17. During her employment at J. C. Penney, Plaintiff Turner received pay and 

benefits which were substantially greater than she was able to obtain after she was constructively 

discharged from her employment there. Therefore, as a direct and proximate result of the illegal 

and discriminatory conduct of the Defendants, Plaintiff Turner has been damaged through the 
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loss of wages and benefits. 

18. Defendant J.C. Penney engaged in unlawful intentional discrimination 

within the meaning of 42 U.S.C. § 1981 a and by its actions violated the provisions of Title VII 

and the IHRA. As a direct and proximate result, Plaintiff Turner has suffered, is now suffering 

and will continue to suffer severe emotional pain, suffering, inconvenience, mental anguish, loss 

of enjoyment of life, embarrassment, and humiliation, for which she is entitled to recover 

compensatory damages. 

19. Defendant lC. Penney engaged in discriminatory practices including those 

detailed in this Complaint with malice or with reckless disregard to the protected rights of 

Plaintiff Turner. Therefore, Plaintiff Turner will be entitled to amend her Complaint to include a 

claim for punitive damages after seeking appropriate leave of the Court. 

20. PlaintitfTurner previously tiled a Charge of Discrimination before the 

Idaho Human Rights Commission and the EEOC. After its investigation, the Idaho Human 

Rights Commission issued its determination finding probable cause to believe that unlawful 

discrimination occurred. An appropriate right to sue letter was then issued. 

21. After its investigation of Turner's Charge of Discrimination, the EEOC 

elected to file its Complaint in this matter. Plaintiff Turner therefore sought leave to intervene 

pursuant to Rule 24 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and 42 U.S.c. § 2000e-5(t)(l). 

Along with her October 30,2000 Motion to Intervene, Plaintiff Turner provided to the Court for 

filing and served upon Defendant J.c. Penney a Complaint substantially similar to that set forth 

in Section A of this Consolidated Complaint. The Court recently granted the Motion to 
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Intervene. 

COUNT lI--INTENTIONAL INFLICTION OF EMOTIONAL DISTRESS 

22. Plaintiff Turner incorporates by this reference the allegations of 

Paragraphs 1-21, above, as though the same were here set forth in full. 

23. The conduct of the Defendants was intentional or reckless, and extreme 

and outrageous. Such conduct directly and proximately caused severe emotional distress to 

Plaintiff Turner. 

24. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants' conduct, Plaintiff Turner 

has sustained substantial damages in an amount to be established at trial. 

25. The Defendants, and each of them, are jointly and severally liable to 

Plaintiff Turner for their intentional infliction of emotional distress upon her and the damages 

resulting therefrom. The liability of the Defendant J. C. Penney arises in part by reason of its 

vicarious liability for the acts and omissions of its agent and employee, Christopher Gee, and for 

the further reason that he was a member of J. C. Penney management who had direct supervisory 

control over PlaintilTTumer. 

COUNT IIl--NEGLIGENT INFLICTION OF EMOTIONAL DISTRESS 

26. Plaintiff Turner incorporates by this reference the allegations of 

Paragraphs 1-25, above, as though the same were here set forth in full. 

27. By their actions and conduct set forth in this Complaint, the Defendants 

negligently inflicted and proximately and directly caused severe emotional distress to Plaintiff 

Turner. Such emotional distress manifested itself by multiple physical symptoms including, but 
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without limitation, loss of sleep, fatigue, severe headaches, reduced libido, stomach pains, loss of 

appetite and anxiety. 

28. The Defendants, and each of them, are jointly and severally liable to 

Plaintiff Turner for their negligent infliction of emotional distress upon her and the damages 

resulting therefrom. The liability of the Defendant J. C. Penney arises in part by reason of its 

vicarious liability for the acts and omissions of its agent and employee, Christopher Gee, and for 

the further reason that he was a member of J.e. Penney management who had direct supervisory 

control over Plaintiff Turner. 

COUNT IV -- NEGLIGENT HIRING, SUPERVISION 
AND/OR RETENTION 

29, Plaintiff Turner incorporates by this reference the allegations of 

Paragraphs 1-28, above, as though the same were here set forth in full. 

30, J, e. Penney and its managers had a duty to exercise at least reasonable 

care in the hiring, training, supervision and retention of 1. e. Penney's employees and 

supervisory personnel. 

31, J,e. Penney and its managers failed to exercise such reasonable care and 

thereby directly and proximately caused foreseeable damage and injury to Plaintiff Turner. 

ATTORNEYS FEES AND COSTS 

32, Plaintiff Turner has been required to employ counsel to prosecute her 

claims against the Defendants and has incurred and will continue to incur substantial attorneys 

fees and costs, all of which she is entitled to recover from the Defendants under applicable law 
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including, but without limitation, 42 U.S.c. §§ 1988(b) and 2000e(5)(K) and Idaho Code §§ 12-

120,12-121, and 67-5901 e/ seq. 

WHEREFORE, the Plaintiff, Becky Turner, prays the judgment, order and decree 

of this Court as follows: 

I. That judgment be entered in favor of Plaintiff Turner and against the 

Defendant J. C. Penney on Counts I and IV and against all Defendants jointly and severally on 

Counts II and III of this Complaint; 

2. That Defendant J. C. Penney be ordered to pay to Plaintiff Turner front pay 

and fringe benefits in an amount to be proven at trial; 

3. That Defendant J. C. Penney be ordered to pay to Plaintiff Turner back pay 

and fringe benefits, including prejudgment interest thereon, less such amounts as may be 

appropriate based upon Plaintiff Turner's other employment; 

4. That all Defendants be ordered to pay to Plaintiff Turner compensatory 

damages for her emotional pain, suffering, inconvenience, mental anguish, loss of enjoyment of 

life, and other non-pecuniary losses in an amount to be determined at trial; 

5. That Plaintiff Turner be granted leave to amend her Complaint to add a 

claim and prayer for punitive damages in accordance with applicable law; 

6. That Plaintiff Turner be awarded her costs of suit and reasonable attorneys 

fees incurred and to be incurred herein; and, 

7. That Plaintiff Turner be awarded all such other and further relief as the 

Court may deem just and equitable. 
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SECTION B - COMPLAINT OF MERRIBETH PARRIS HICKS 

COMES NOW the Plaintiff, Merribeth Parris Hicks, by and through her counsel, 

the law firm of Hopkins Roden Crockett Hansen & Hoopes, PLLC, and for cause of action 

against the above-named Defendants complains and alleges as follows: 

PARTIES, JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

I. PlaintiffMerribeth Parris Hicks is, and at all times material hereto was, an 

individual residing in Bonneville County, Idaho. During the period when the various acts alleged 

in this Complaint occurred, Plaintiff Hicks was employed by the Defendant, J. e. Penney 

Company, Inc., at the beauty salon (hereinafter the "Salon") in its Idaho Falls, Idaho store. 

2. Defendant J. e. Penney Company, Inc., (hereinafter "J. e. Penney") is a 

Delaware corporation which at all times material hereto conducted business in the State of the 

Idaho and maintained, operated and conducted business through the aforementioned Idaho Falls, 

Idaho store. J.e. Penney is, and at all times material hereto was, an employer engaging in an 

industry affecting commerce, employing more than 500 employees. 

3. Defendants Christopher Gee and Pat Boyce are, and at times material 

hereto were, individuals residing in Idaho. Throughout the course of Hicks' employment at the 

Salon, Defendant Gee was the Styling Salon Manager and her immediate supervisor. For the 

majority of that time period, Defendant Boyce was the Store Manager and Christopher Gee's 

immediate supervisor. The acts of Defendants Gee and Boyce during the course and scope of 

their employment with Defendant J. C. Penney, including those which serve as the basis for the 

claims stated in this Complaint, are imputed to 1. e. Penney. 
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4. John and Jane Doe Defendants 1-5 are other persons or entities who are 

liable or responsible to Plaintiff Hicks, either directly or on theories of vicarious liability, for the 

damages sought. The identity of the John and Jane Doe Defendants is presently unknown. At 

such time as the identity and status of the John and Jane Doe Defendants is or becomes known, 

Plaintiff Hicks shall seek leave of the Court to amend this Complaint to specifically name the 

John and Jane Doe Defendants, with such amendment to relate back to the date of filing herein. 

5. This Complaint and the causes of action it sets forth arise chiefly out of 

events, acts and occurrences which took place in Bonneville County, Idaho and which occurred 

during the period Plaintiff Hicks was employed by J. C. Penney at the Salon in its Idaho Falls, 

Idaho store. 

6. The Equal Employment Opportunity Commission ("EEOC") previously 

invoked this Court's jurisdiction pursuant to U.S.c. §§ 451, 1331, 1337, 1343 and 1345 and 

instituted this action pursuant to Title VI! of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as codified and 

amended, 42 U.S.C. §2000(e) et seq. (,Title VII"), and Section 102 of the Civil Rights Act of 

1991 as codified and amended, 42 U.S.c. §1981a ("Section 198Ia"). This Court has subject 

matter jurisdiction over Plaintiff Hicks' Title VII and Section 1981a claims pursuant to 28 

U.S.c. § 1331. 

7. Plaintiff Hicks also alleges that Defendants J.c. Penney, Gee and Boyce 

violated her rights under the Idaho Human Rights Act ("IHRA"), Idaho Code § 67-5901 et seq, 

and under common law. Under 28 U.S.C. § 1367, this Court has supplemental jurisdiction over 

these IHRA and common law claims even though they do not themselves involve a federal 
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question within the meaning of 28 U.S.c. § 1331. 

COUNT I--GENDER DISCRIMINATION. SEXUAL HARASSMENT 
AND CONSTRUCTIVE DISCHARGE 

8. Plaintiff Hicks incorporates by this reference the allegations of Paragraphs 

1-7, above, as though the same were here set forth in full. 

9. Plaintiff Hicks was employed by Defendant J.C. Penney at the Salon in its 

Idaho Falls, Idaho store. Her work there commenced on or about April 9, 1997 and continued 

until approximately January of 1999. 

10. Throughout the course of her employment at the Salon, Plaintiff Hicks 

worked under and was supervised by Defendant Gee, the Styling Salon Manager. 

II. During the entire course of Plaintiff Hicks' employment with Defendant J. 

C. Penney, Defendants Gee and J.c. Penney subjected her and several of her co-workers in the 

Salon to a continuing course of obscene, offensive, degrading and intimidating comments and 

physical acts of a sexual nature. These comments and acts included, among others, the 

following: 

A. Mr. Gee was continually telling graphic sexual stories, requesting 

sexual favors, and making other sexually oriented comments toward Plaintiff 

Hicks and her co-workers. Gee's comments included comments about Plaintiff 

Hicks and others giving him oral sex or having sex with him, or about Plaintiff 

Hicks' children doing those things. For instance, Mr. Gee repeatedly told Plaintiff 

Hicks that he wanted to take her son out and have anal intercourse with him. He 

also talked on repeated occasions about having sexual intercourse and anal 

CONSOLIDATED COMPLAINT AND DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL BY PLAINTIFFS BECKY 
TURNER, MERRIBETH PARRIS HICKS, TROY HURLEY, SARAH JOHNSON AND CAROL 
MAYER- 13 



intercourse with her daughter. He also talked on repeated occasions about getting 

oral sex from her daughter, her son or herself. 

B. Mr. Gee's sexual comments and requests were frequently tied 

directly to her requests for time off, scheduling accommodations, or other job 

benefits. For instance, the second time Mr. Gee made a sexual comment about 

PlaintilTHicks' son was when she asked for some time off. There were many 

occasions when Plaintiff Hicks asked for time off or for other tangible 

employment benefits when Mr. Gee responded that he would accommodate her if 

he could have sexual relations with her son, her daughter or herself. On other 

occasions, Mr. Gee would give Plaintiff Hicks work assignments and state that if 

she didn't go do it, he would go find her son or daughter and engage in various 

sexual acts with them. Plaintiff Hicks repeatedly heard Mr. Gee make similar 

demands of other co-workers. 

C. Mr. Gee treated favorably those employees who submitted to his 

sexual propositions and/or tolerated his offensive language, while treating those 

who would not with contempt. Specifically, he gave more favorable work 

assignments to employees who went along with his behavior. 

12. Plaintiff Hicks reported Mr. Gee's sexual harassment to Carol Mayer, the 

Loss Prevention Manager at J. C. Penney's Idaho Falls store, who reported it to Defendant Pat 

Boyce, the Store Manager. In addition, other victims reported Mr. Gee's behavior and the 

sexually hostile environment which existed in the Salon to other members of J. C. Penney 
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management before, during and after the Plaintiffs employment. These included some 

complaints to the Store Manager, Defendant Pat Boyce, and her predecessor. When those 

reports were made, it was foreseeable that Plaintiff Hicks would suffer continued hann from 

Defendant Gee. Nevertheless, Defendant Pat Boyce and 1.c. Penney permitted Mr. Gee to 

remain in his position as the Salon Styling Manager and to exercise supervisory control over 

Plaintiff Hicks and other victims long after they became aware of his behavior. Consequently, 

Plaintiff Hicks continued to suffer damages. 

13. Plaintiff Hicks feared that further pursuing her complaint about Mr. Gee's 

actions would not likely result in corrective measures by J. C. Penney, but rather would probably 

result in Mr. Gee and/or other members of 1. C. Penney management retaliating against her. 

14. Defendant Gee's obscene and abusive comments and behavior were not 

welcomed or appreciated by Plaintiff Hicks, and altered the conditions of her employment by 

creating a hostile and offensive work environment. 

IS. Faced with the prospect of having to continue to endure such conditions, 

Plaintiff Hicks had no choice but to resign from her job. 

16. The sexual harassment, ongoing hostile work environment, gender 

discrimination and retaliation endured by Plaintiff Hicks and her resulting constructive discharge 

from her employment with J. C. Penney were unlawful and constituted repeated and serious 

violations of the following: (I) Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 as codified and 

amended, 42 u.s.c. § 2000e et seq. (hereinafter "Title VII"); and (2) the Idaho Human Rights 

Act as codified and amended, 67-590 I et seq. (hereinafter the "IHRA"). 
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17. During her employment at 1. C. Penney, Plaintiff Hicks received pay and 

benefits which were substantially greater than she was able to obtain after she was constructively 

discharged from her employment there. Therefore, as a direct and proximate result of the illegal 

and discriminatory conduct of the Defendants, Plaintiff Hicks has been damaged through the loss 

of wages and benefits. 

18. Defendant J.c. Penney engaged in unlawful intentional discrimination 

within the meaning of42 U.S.c. § 1981a and by its actions violated the provisions of Title VII 

and the IHRA. As a direct and proximate result, Plaintiff Hicks has suffered, is now suffering 

and will continue to suffer severe emotional pain, suffering, inconvenience, mental anguish, loss 

of enjoyment of life, embarrassment, and humiliation, for which she is entitled to recover 

compensatory damages. 

19. Defendant J.c. Penney engaged in discriminatory practices including those 

detailed in this Complaint with malice or with reckless disregard to the protected rights of the 

Plaintiff Hicks. Therefore, Plaintiff Hicks will be entitled to amend her Complaint to include a 

claim for punitive damages after seeking appropriate leave of the Court. 

20. Plaintiff Hicks previously filed a Charge of Discrimination before the 

Idaho Human Rights Commission and the EEOC. After its investigation, the Idaho Human 

Rights Commission issued its determination finding probable cause to believe that unlawful 

discrimination occurred. An appropriate right to sue Ictter was then issued. 

21. After its investigation of Hicks' Charge ofDiscrimination, the EEOC 

electcd to file its Complaint in this matter. Plaintiff Hicks therefore sought leave to intervene 

CONSOLIDATED COMPLAINT AND DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL BY PLAINTIfFS BECKY 
TURNER, MERRIBETH PARRIS HICKS, TROY HURLEY, SARAH JOHNSON AND CAROL 
MAYER- 16 



pursuant to Rule 24 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and 42 U.S.C. § 2000e-5(f)(1). 

Along with her October 30, 2000 Motion to Intervene, Plaintiff Hicks provided to the Court for 

filing and served upon Defendant J.e. Penney a Complaint substantially similar to that set forth 

in Section B of this Consolidated Complaint. The Court recently granted the Motion to 

Intervene. 

COUNT [[--INTENTIONAL INFLICTION OF EMOTIONAL DISTRESS 

22. Plaintiff Hicks incorporates by this reference the allegations of Paragraphs 

1-21, above, as though the same were here set forth in full. 

23. The conduct of the Defendants was intentional or reckless, and extreme 

and outrageous. Such conduct directly and proximately caused severe emotional distress to 

Plaintiff Hicks. 

24. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants' conduct, Plaintiff Hicks 

has sustained substantial damages in an amount to be established at trial. 

25. The Defendants, and each of them, are jointly and severally liable to 

Plaintiff Hicks for their intentional infliction of emotional distress upon her and the damages 

resulting therefrom. The liability of Defendant J. C. Penney arises in part by reason of its 

vicarious liability for the acts and omissions of its agent and employee, Christopher Gee, and for 

the further reason that he was a member of J. e. Penney management who had direct supervisory 

control over Plaintiff Hicks. The liability of Defendant J.e. Penney also arises in part by reason 

of its vicarious liability for the acts and omissions of its agent and employee, Pat Boyce, and for 

the further reason that she was a member of J. C. Penney management who had direct 
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supervisory control over Defendant Gee. 

COUNT III--NEGLIGENT INFLICTION OF EMOTIONAL DISTRESS 

26. Plaintiff Hicks incorporates by this reference the allegations of Paragraphs 

1-25. above. as though the same were here set forth in full. 

27. By their actions and conduct set forth in this Complaint, the Defendants 

negligently inflicted and proximately and directly caused severe emotional distress to Plaintiff 

Hicks. Such emotional distress manifested itself by multiple physical symptoms including, but 

without limitation, loss of sleep, fatigue, severe headaches, reduced libido, stomach pains, loss of 

appetite and anxiety. 

28. The Defendants, and each of them, are jointly and severally liable to 

Plaintiff Hicks for their negligent infliction of emotional distress upon her and the damages 

resulting therefrom. The liability of Defendant 1. e. Penney arises in part by reason of its 

vicarious liability for the acts and omissions of its agent and employee, Christopher Gee, and for 

the further reason that he was a member of J.e. Penney management who had direct supervisory 

control over Plaintiff Hicks. The liability of the Defendant 1.e. Penney also arises in part by 

reason of its vicarious liability for the acts and omissions of its agent and employee, Pat Boyce, 

and for the further reason that she was a member of J.e. Penney management who had direct 

supervisory control over Defendant Gee. 
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COUNT IV n NEGLIGENT HIRING, SUPERVISION 
AND/OR RETENTION 

29, Plaintiff Hicks incorporates by this reference the allegations of Paragraphs 

1-28, above, as though the same were here set forth in full. 

30, j, C. Penney and its managers had a duty to exercise at least reasonable 

care in the hiring, training, supervision and retention of j, C. Penney's employees and 

supervisory personnel. 

31, I,C. Penney and its managers failed to exercise such reasonable care and 

thereby directly and proximately caused foreseeable damage and injury to Plaintiff Hicks, 

ATTORNEYS FEES AND COSTS 

32, Plaintiff Hicks has been required to employ counsel to prosecute her 

claims against the Defendants and has incurred and will continue to incur substantial attorneys 

fees and costs, all of which she is entitled to recover from the Defendants under applicable law 

including, but without limitation, 42 U,S,c. §§ 1988(b) and 2000e(5)(K) and Idaho Code §§ 12-

120,12-121, and 67-5901 el seq, 

WHEREFORE, the Plaintiff, Merribeth Parris Hicks, prays the judgment, order 

and decree of this Court as follows: 

1. That judgment be entered in favor of PI aintiff Hicks and against the 

Defendant I, C. Penney on Counts I and IV and against all Defendants jointly and severally on 

Counts]] and 1II of this Complaint; 

2, That Defendant], C. Penney be ordered to pay to Plaintiff Hicks front pay 

and benefits in an amount to be proven at trial; 
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3. That Defendant J. C. Penney be ordered to pay to Plaintiff Hicks back pay 

and fringe benefits, including prejudgment interest thereon, less such amounts as may be 

appropriate based upon Plaintiff Hicks' other employment; 

4. That all Defendants be ordered to pay to Plaintiff Hicks compensatory 

damages for her emotional pain, suffering, inconvenience, mental anguish, loss of enjoyment of 

life, and other non-pecuniary losses in an amount to be determined at trial; 

5. That Plaintiff Hicks be granted leave to amend her Complaint to add a 

claim and prayer for punitive damages in accordance with applicable law; 

6. That Plaintiff Hicks be awarded her costs of suit and reasonable attorneys 

fees incurred and to be incurred herein; and, 

7. That Plaintiff Hicks be awarded all such other and further relief as the 

Court may deem just and equitable. 

SECTION C - COMPLAINT OF TROY HURLEY 

COMES NOW the Plaintiff, Troy Hurley, by and through his counsel, the law 

firm of Hopkins Roden Crockett Hansen & Hoopes, PLLC, and for cause of action against the 

above-named Defendants complains and alleges as follows: 

PARTIES. JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

I. Plaintiff Troy Hurley is, and at all times material hereto was, an individual 

residing in Bonneville County, Idaho. During the period when the various acts alleged in this 

Complaint occurred, Plaintiff Hurley was employed by the Defendant, J. C. Penney Company, 

Inc., at the beauty salon (hereinafter the "Salon") in its Idaho Falls, Idaho store. 
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2. Defendant J. e. Penney Company, Inc., (hereinafter "J. e. Penney") is a 

Delaware corporation which at all times material hereto conducted business in the State of the 

Idaho and maintained, operated and conducted business through the aforementioned Idaho Falls, 

Idaho store. J.e. Penney is, and at all times material hereto was, an employer engaging in an 

industry affecting commerce, employing more than 500 employees. 

3. Defendants Christopher Gee and Pat Boyce are, and at times material 

hereto were individuals residing in Idaho. From the time Hurley began his employment at the 

Salon until at least August of 1999, Defendant Gee was the Styling Salon Manager and Hurley's 

immediate supervisor. Defendant Gee continued to work in the Salon with Hurley until at least 

late September of 1999. Defendant Boyce was the Store Manager and Christopher Gee's 

immediate supervisor. The acts of Defendants Gee and Boyce during the course and scope of 

their employment with Defendant J. e. Penney, including those which serve as the basis for the 

claims stated in this Complaint, are imputed to 1. e. Penney. 

4. John and Jane Doe Defendants 1-5 are other persons or entities who are 

liable or responsible to Plaintiff Hurley, either directly or on theories of vicarious liability, for the 

damages sought. The identity of the John and Jane Doe Defendants is presently unknown. At 

such time as the identity and status of the John and Jane Doe Defendants is or becomes known, 

Plaintiff Hurley shall seek leave of the Court to amend this Complaint to specifically name the 

John and Jane Doe Defendants, with such amendment to relate back to the date of filing herein. 

S. This Complaint and the causes of action it sets forth arise chiefly out of 

events, acts and occurrences which took place in Bonneville County. Idaho and which occurred 

CONSOLIDATED COMPLAINT AND DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL BY PLAINTIFFS BECKY 
TURNER, MERRIBETH PARRIS HICKS, TROY HURLEY, SARAH JOHNSON AND CAROL 
MAYER- 21 



during the period Plaintiff Hurley was employed by J. C. Penney at the Salon in its Idaho Falls, 

Idaho store. 

6. The Plaintiff, Equal Employment Opportunity Commission ("EEOC"), 

previously invoked this Court's jurisdiction pursuant to U.S.c. §§ 451, 1331, 1337, 1343 and 

1345 and instituted this action pursuant to Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as codified 

and amended, 42 U.S.c. §2000(e) et seq. ("Title VII"), and Section 102 of the Civil Rights Act 

of 1991 as codified and amended, 42 u.s.c. § 1981 a ("Section 1981 a"). This Court has subject 

matter jurisdiction over Plaintiff Hurley's Title VII and Section 1981a claims pursuant to 28 

U.S.c. § 1331. 

7. Plaintiff Hurley also alleges that Defendants J.c. Penney, Gee and Boyce 

violated his rights under the Idaho Human Rights Act ("IHRA"), Idaho Code § 67-5901 et seq. 

Under 28 U.S.c. § 1367, this Court has supplemental jurisdiction over these [HRA claims and 

additionally for all other claims alleged in this Complaint that do not themselves involve a 

federal question within the meaning of 28 U.S.c. § 1331. 

COUNT [--GENDER DISCRIMINATION, SEXUAL HARASSMENT 
AND CONSTRUCTIVE DISCHARGE 

8. Plaintiff Hurley incorporates by this reference the allegations of 

Paragraphs 1-7, above, as though the same were here set forth in full. 

9. Plaintiff Hurley was employed by the Defendant J.c. Penney at the Salon 

in its Idaho Falls, Idaho store, His work there commenced on or about September 4, 1997 and 

continued until November of 1999. 

10. From the time Hurley began his employment at the Salon until at least 
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August of 1999, Plaintiff Hurley worked under and was supervised by Defendant Gee, the 

Styling Salon Manager; Defendant Gee continued to work in the Salon with Hurley until at least 

latc September of 1999. 

II. During virtually the entire course of Plaintiff Hurley's employment with 

Defendant J. C. Penney, Defendants Gee and J.C. Penney subjected him and several of his co-

workers in the Salon to a continuing course of obscene, offensive, degrading and intimidating 

comments and physical acts of a sexual nature. These comments and acts included, among 

others, the following: 

A. Mr. Gee was continually telling graphic sexual stories, requesting 

sexual favors, and making other sexually offensive comments toward Plaintiff 

Hurley and his co-workers. For example, Gee made repeated requests to Hurley 

that they "swap wives." Gee also threatened Hurley in foul and vulgar terms that 

he was going to take Hurley's wife and have sexual intercourse with her. 

B. Mr. Gee's sexual comments and requests were frequently tied 

directly to his subordinates' requests for time off, scheduling accommodations or 

other job benefits. For instance, Hurley stepped outside the Idaho Falls store for a 

short break one day in the latter part of 1998 and observed his co-worker Becky 

Turner sobbing. He asked her what was wrong and she informed him that she had 

just asked Gee for a scheduling accommodation so she could receive a necessary 

operation and that Gee had responded that he would grant her request if she would 

perform oral sex for him. When Hurley subsequently reported this incident to 
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Store Manager Pat Boyce she responded by asking if Becky was "overreacting" or 

if Gee was just"joking." Gee also occasionally made comments to Plaintiff 

Hurley that implied that Gee wanted to have sex with him. For instance, he told 

Hurley that his working conditions would be better if Hurley agreed "to party" 

with him. 

C. Gee treated Hurley less favorably than those employees who 

submitted to Gee's sexual propositions and/or offensive language and such 

disparate treatment worsened when Hurley rejected Gee's sexual propositions and 

objected to Gee's coarse sexual language. When Hurley complained to Gee about 

this discriminatory treatment, Gee told him that Hurley's problem arose from the 

fact he failed to "party" or "hang out" with Gee. 

12. Plaintiff Hurley reported Mr. Gee's discriminatory treatment and sexual 

harassment of Salon employees to Carol Mayer, the Loss Prevention Manager at J. C. Penney's 

Idaho Falls store. He made additional reports to Store Manager Pat Boyce and others. For 

instance, he approached Store Manager Pat Boyce in late 1998 and complained about Gee's 

discriminatory actions against him. He specifically told Boyce that Gee had told him that Gee 

based his treatment of Hurley upon Hurley's unwillingness to "go out and party" with Gee. 

Boyce then informed Hurley that Gee could do whatever he wished since he was the Salon 

Manager. 

13. During late 1998 and 1999, Hurley made numerous additional complaints 

to various members of J.c.Penney management about Gee's behavior, the discrimination he was 
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enduring and the sexually hostile work environment in the Salon. These included complaints to 

Carol Mayer, Pat Boyce and others. Again, however, Boyce was unsympathetic and went so far 

as to sarcastically query of Hurley when he reported Gee's ongoing foul language and conduct: 

"What do you want me to do? Go in there and put tape over his mouth')" 

14. Other victims also complained about Gee's inappropriate behavior, Gee's 

discriminatory treatment of his subordinates and the sexually hostile work environment which 

existed in the Salon. These included multiple complaints to the Store Manager Pat Boyce and 

her predecessor, Steve Aller. Nevertheless, J.e. Penney permitted Mr. Gee to remain in his 

position as the Salon Styling Manager until at least August of 1999, to work with Plaintiff Hurley 

in the Salon until at least late September of 1999 and to exercise supervisory control over 

Plaintiff Hurley and other victims long after J.e. Penney became aware of his behavior. 

IS. It became apparent to Hurley and other employees in the Salon that 

complaints to J.e.Penney management and particularly to Store Manager Pat Boyce would not 

likely result in effective corrective measures by J. e. Penney, but rather would probably result in 

Gee, Boyce and/or other members of J. C. Penney management retaliating against the 

complaining employee and treating such employee with distrust, contempt and disdain. 

16. When complaints were made to Boyce and various other members of J.C. 

Penney management, they were greeted with skepticism, hostility and often treated in a flippant 

and confrontational manner. They were not kept confidential but were rather disclosed to Gee 

who was then pennitted to remain in his supervisory position and to work with and retaliate 

against the very employees who made the complaints. Moreover, those like Hurley who made 
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complaints were labeled and stereotyped as complainers, and were thereafter treated with disdain 

and contempt by Gee, Boyce and 1.e. Penney. 

17. Although Gee finally left J.e. Penney's Idaho Falls store in late September 

of 1999, Pat Boyce and other hostile members of J.e. Penney management remained there. 

Boyce and certain other of her subordinates continued to treat Hurley and others who had 

complained about Gee with contempt and disdain. Instances of retaliation against Hurley 

continued as did 1.e. Penney's disparate treatment of him. Among other things, Hurley was 

required to stop charging his normal rate for certain techniques and procedures he used on his 

clientele even though that rate was in accordance with longstanding policies. 

18. As a result of the discrimination and retaliatory conduct against him, 

Hurley concluded he had no choice but to quit his job with Defendant J.e. Penney and find 

alternative employment. Even after he quit, however, he still endured spiteful and disdainful 

treatment at the hands of the Defendants. Among other things, this treatment included the 

making and dissemination of false statements that: (I) Hurley had pursued Gee's ex-wife while 

she was married to Gee; and (2) that Hurley was not happy with his relationship with his wife 

and was having an extra-marital affair. 

19. The sexual harassment, ongoing hostile work environment, gender 

discrimination and retaliation endured by Plaintiff Hurley and his resulting constructive 

discharge from his employment with J. e. Penney were unlawful and constituted repeated and 

serious violations oflhe following: (I) Title VII oflhe Civil Rights Act of 1964 as codified and 

amended, 42 U.S.c. § 2000e et seq. (hereinafter "Title VlI"); and (2) the Idaho Human Rights 
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Act as codified and amended, 67-5901 et seq. (hereinafter the "IHRA"). 

20. During his employment at 1. C. Penney, Plaintiff Hurley received pay and 

benefits which were substantially greater than he was able to obtain after he was constructively 

discharged from his employment there. Moreover, Plaintiff Hurley was denied promotion and 

other related benefits. Therefore, as a direct and proximate result of the illegal and 

discriminatory conduct of the Defendants, Plaintiff Hurley has been damaged through the loss of 

wages and benefits. 

21. Defendant J.c. Penney engaged in unlawful intentional discrimination 

within the meaning of 42 U.S.c. § 1981 a and by its actions violated the provisions of Title VII 

and the IHRA. As a direct and proximate result, Plaintiff Hurley has suffered, is now suffering 

and will continue to suffer severe emotional pain, suffering, inconvenience, mental anguish, loss 

of enjoyment of life, embarrassment, and humiliation, for which he is entitled to recover 

compensatory damages. 

22. Defendant lC. Penney engaged in discriminatory practices including those 

detailed in this Complaint with malice or with reckless disregard to the protected rights of 

Plaintiff Hurley. Therefore, PlaintifT Hurley will be entitled to amend his Complaint to include a 

claim for punitive damages after seeking appropriate leave of the Court. 

23. Plaintiff Hurley previously tiled a Charge of Discrimination before the 

Idaho Human Rights Commission/EEOC. After its investigation of that Charge of 

Discrimination, and others filed by the Plaintiff Hurley's co-workers, the EEOC elected to file 

its Complaint in this matter. The Plaintiff therefore sought leave to intervene pursuant to Rule 
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24 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and 42 U.S.c. § 2000e-5(f)(l). Along with his 

October 30, 2000 Motion to Intervene, Plaintiff Hurley provided to the Court for filing and 

served upon Defendant J.e. Penney a Complaint substantially similar to that set forth in Section 

C of this Consolidated Complaint. The Court recently granted the Motion to Intervene. 

COUNT [[--INTENTIONAL INFLICTION OF EMOTIONAL DISTRESS 

24. Plaintiff Hurley incorporates by this reference the allegations of Paragraph 

1-23, above, as though the same were here set forth in full. 

25. The conduct of the Defendants was intentional or reckless, and extreme 

and outrageous. Such conduct directly and proximately caused severe emotional distress to the 

Plaintiff Hurley. 

26. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants' conduct, Plaintiff Hurley 

has sustained substantial damages in an amount to be established at trial. 

27. The Defendants, and each of them, are jointly and severally liable to 

Plaintiff Hurley for their intentional infliction of emotional distress inflicted upon him and the 

damages resulting therefrom. The liability of Defendant J. C. Penney arises in part by reason of 

its vicarious liability for the acts and omissions of its agent and employee, Christopher Gee, and 

for the further reason that he was a member of J. e. Penney management who had direct 

supervisory control over Plaintiff Hurley. The liability of Defendant J.e. Penney also arises in 

part by reason of its vicarious liability for the acts and omissions of its agent and employee, Pat 

Boyce, and for the further reason she was a member of J.e. Penney management who had direct 

supervisory control over Defendant Gee. 
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COUNT III--NEGLIGENT INFLICTION OF EMOTIONAL DISTRESS 

28. Plaintiff Hurley incorporates by this reference the allegations of 

Paragraphs 1-27, above, as though the same were here set forth in full. 

29. By their actions and conduct set forth in this Complaint, the Defendants 

negligently inflicted and proximately and directly caused severe emotional distress to Plaintiff 

Hurley. Such emotional distress manifested itself by multiple physical symptoms including, but 

without limitation, loss of sleep, fatigue, severe headaches, reduced libido, stomach pains, loss of 

appetite and anxiety. 

30. The Defendants, and each of them, are jointly and severally liable to 

Plaintiff Hurley for their negligent infliction of emotional distress upon him and the damages 

resulting therefrom. The liability of Defendant J. C. Penney arises in part by reason of its 

vicarious liability for the acts and omissions of its agent and employee, Christopher Gee, and for 

the further reason that he was a member of lC. Penney management who had direct supervisory 

control over Plaintiff Hurley. The liability of Defendant J.C. Penney also arises by reason of its 

vicarious liability for the acts and omissions of its agent and employee, Pat Boyce, and for the 

further reason that she was a member of J.c. Penney management who had direct supervisory 

control over Defendant Gee. 

COUNT IV -- NEGLIGENT HIRING. SUPERVISION 
AND/OR RETENTION 

31. Plaintiff Hurley incorporates by this reference the allegations of 

Paragraphs 1-30, above, as though the same were here set forth in full. 

32. J. C. Penney and its managers had a duty to exercise at least reasonable 
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care in the hiring, training, supervision and retention of J. C. Penney's employees and 

supervisory personnel. 

33. J.c. Penney and its managers failed to exercise such reasonable care and 

thereby directly and proximately caused foreseeable damage and injury to Plaintiff Huriey. 

A TTORNEYS FEES AND COSTS 

34. Plaintiff Hurley has been required to employ counsel to prosecute his 

claims against the Defendants and has incurred and will continue to incur substantial attorneys 

fees and costs, all of which he is entitled to recover from the Defendants under applicable law 

including, but without limitation, 42 U.S.c. §§ 1988(b) and 2000e(5)(K) and Idaho Code §§ 12-

120,12-121, and 67-5901 et seq. 

WHEREFORE, the Plaintiff, Troy Hurley, prays the judgment, order and decree 

of this Court as follows: 

1. That judgment be entered in favor of Plaintiff Hurley and against 

Defendant 1. C. Penney on Counts I and IV and against all Defendants jointly and severally on 

Counts II and III of this Complaint; 

2. That Defendant J. C. Penney be ordered to pay Plaintiff Hurley front pay 

and benefits in an amount to be proven at trial; 

3. That Defendant 1. C. Penney be ordered to pay to Plaintiff Hurley back 

pay and fringe benefits, including prejudgment interest thereon, less such amounts as may be 

appropriate based upon Plaintiff Hurley's other employment; 

4. That all Defendants be ordered to pay Plaintiff Hurley compensatory 
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damages for his emotional pain, suffering, inconvenience, mental anguish, loss of enjoyment of 

life, and other non-pecuniary losses in an amount to be determined at trial; 

5. That Plaintiff Hurley be granted leave to amend his Complaint to add a 

claim and prayer for punitive damages in accordance with applicable law; 

6. That Plaintiff Hurley be awarded his costs of suit and reasonable attorneys 

fees incurred and to be incurred herein; and, 

7. That Plaintiff Hurley be awarded all such other and further relief as the 

Court may deem just and equitable. 

SECTION D - COMPLAINT OF SARAH JOHNSON 

COMES NOW the Plaintiff, Sarah Johnson, by and through her counsel, the law 

firm of Hopkins Roden Crockett Hansen & Hoopes, PLLC, and for cause of action against the 

above-named Defendants complains and alleges as follows: 

PARTIES. JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

I. Plaintiff Sarah Johnson is, and at all times material hereto was, an 

individual residing in Bonneville County, Idaho. During the period when the various acts alleged 

in this Complaint occurred, Plaintiff Johnson was employed by the Defendant, J. C. Penney 

Company, Inc., at the beauty salon (hereinafter the "Salon") in its Idaho Falls, Idaho store. 

2. Defendant 1. C. Penney Company, Inc., (hereinafter "J. C. Penney") is a 

Delaware corporation which at all times material hereto conducted business in the State of Idaho 

and maintained, operated and conducted business through the aforementioned Idaho Falls, Idaho 

store. J.C. Penney is, and at all times material hereto was, an employer engaging in an industry 
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affecting commerce, employing more than 500 employees. 

3. Defendants Christopher Gee and Pat Boyce are, and at times material 

hereto were individuals residing in Idaho. From the time Plaintiff Johnson began her 

employment at the Salon until at least August of 1999, Defendant Gee was the Styling Salon 

Manager and her immediate supervisor. Defendant Gee continued to work in the Salon with 

Johnson until at least as late as September of 1999. Defendant Boyce was the Store Manager and 

Christopher Gee's immediate supervisor. The acts of Defendants Gee and Boyce during the 

course and scope of their employment with Defendant J. C. Penney, including those which serve 

as the basis for the claims stated in this Complaint, are imputed to J. C. Penney. 

4. John and Jane Doc Defendants 1-5 are other persons or entities who are 

liable or responsible to Plaintiff Johnson, either directly or on theories of vicarious liability, for 

the damages sought. The identity of the John and Jane Doe Defendants is presently unknown. At 

such time as the identity and status of the John and Jane Doe Defendants is or becomes known, 

Plaintiff Johnson shall seek leave of the Court to amend this Complaint to specifically name the 

John and Jane Doe Defendants, with such amendment to relate back to the date of filing herein. 

5. This Complaint and the causes of action it sets forth arise chiefly out of 

events, acts and occurrences which took place in Bonneville County, Idaho and which occurred 

during the period Plaintiff Johnson was employed by J. C. Penney at the Salon in its Idaho Falls, 

I daho store. 

6. The Plaintiff, Equal Employment Opportunity Commission ("EEOC"), 

previously invoked this Court's jurisdiction pursuant to U.S.c. §§ 451, 1331, 1337, 1343 and 
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1345 and instituted this action pursuant to Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as codified 

and amended, 42 U.S.e. §2000(e) ('/ seq. ("Title VII"), and Section 102 of the Civil Rights Act 

of 1991 as codified and amended, 42 U.S.e. § 1981 a ("Section 1981 a"). This Court has subject 

matter jurisdiction over Plaintiff Johnson's Title VII and Section 1981 a claims pursuant to 28 

U.S.e. § 1331. 

7. Plaintiff Johnson also alleges that Defendants J.e. Penney, Gee and Boyce 

violated her rights under the Idaho Human Rights Act ("IHRA"), Idaho Code § 67-5901 el seq. 

Under 28 U.S.e. § 1367, this Court has supplemental jurisdiction over these IHRA claims and 

additionally for all other claims alleged in this Complaint that do not themselves involve a 

federal question within the meaning of 28 U.S.C. § 1331. 

COUNT InGENDER DISCRIMINATION. SEXUAL HARASSMENT 
AND CONSTRUCTIVE DISCHARGE 

8. Plaintiff Johnson incorporates by this reference the allegations of 

Paragraphs 1-7, above, as though the same were here set forth in full. 

9. Plaintiff Johnson was employed by Defendant J.e. Penney at the Salon in 

its Idaho Falls, Idaho store. Her work there commenced on or about August 20, 1998 and 

continued until October of 1999. 

10. From the time Johnson began her employment at the Salon until at least 

August of 1999, Plaintiff Johnson worked under and was supervised by Defendant Gee, the 

Styling Salon Manager; Defendant Gee continued to work in the Salon with Johnson until at least 

late September of 1999. 

II. During virtually the entire course of Plaintiff Johnson's employment with 
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Defendant J. e. Penney, Defendants Gee and J.e. Penney subjected her and several of her co-

workers in the Salon to a continuing course of obscene, offensive, degrading and intimidating 

comments and physical acts of a sexual nature. These comments and acts included, among 

others, the following: 

A. Mr. Gee was continually telling graphic sexual stories, requesting 

sexual favors, and making other sexually offensive comments toward Plaintiff 

Johnson and her co-workers. Mr. Gee's sexual comments and requests were 

frequently tied to requests for time off, scheduling accommodations or other 

tangible employment benefits. 

B. Mr. Gee subjected Plaintiff Johnson to unwelcome sexual touching 

and other behavior of a sexual nature. When Johnson or her family members 

made efforts to report or resist Mr. Gee's unwelcome, inappropriate conduct, she 

was subjected to retaliation, ridicule, contempt and scorn in her work place. 

e. Mr. Gee treated favorably those employees who submitted to his 

sexual propositions and/or tolerated his offensive language, while treating those 

who would not with contempt. Specifically, he gave better working hours, better 

job assignments, and more referral business, which meant more opportunities and 

compensation, to employees who went along with his behavior. 

12. PlaintiffJohnson reported Mr. Gee's sexual harassment to Carol Mayer, 

the Loss Prevention Manager at J. C. Penney's Idaho Falls store. Additional reports were made 

by Plaintiff Johnson and her husband to Store Manager Pat Boyce and even to J. C. Penney 
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attorney Ronald Winkler. J. e. Penney disclosed these complaints to Gee and then continued to 

expose Plaintiff Johnson to further harm by making her work with Gee in the Salon. 

13. Other victims also reported Mr. Gee's behavior and the sexually hostile 

environment which existed in the Salon to other members of 1. C. Penney management before 

and during Plaintiff Johnson's employment. These even included some complaints to the current 

Store Manager and her predecessor. Nevertheless, J.e. Penney permitted Mr. Gee to remain in 

his position as the Salon Styling Manager until at least August of 1999, to work with Plaintiff 

Johnson in the Salon until at least late September of 1999 and to exercise supervisory control 

over her and other victims long after lC. Penney became aware of his behavior. 

14. Plaintiff Johnson feared that pursuing her complaint about Mr. Gee's 

actions would not likely result in corrective measures by J. e. Penney, but rather would probably 

result in Mr. Gee and/or other members of l e. Penney management retaliating against her. 

These fears were borne out. For instance, after the Plaintiff and her husband made complaints 

about Defendant Gee to Store Manager Pat Boyce and J. e. Penney Attorney Ronald Winkler, 

Plaintiff Johnson was thereafter required to work with Gee in the Salon. During that period, 

Defendants engaged in the following, among other, inappropriate and retaliatory activities: 

A. Gee made false and defamatory statements to many people that he had 

engaged in sexual threesomes with Plaintiff Johnson and her husband. 

B. Gee purposely worked right next to Plaintiff Johnson and made disruptive, 

hostile, hateful and intimidating faces and gestures to her and her clients; 

C. Gee made efforts to divert Plaintiff Johnson's clientele away from her and 
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to tum other employees against her; 

D. Gee told others graphic and offensive stories of sexual encounters he had 

allegedly had with Plaintiff Johnson and bragged of his alleged sexual conquests 

of her. 

E. Gee openly threatened Plaintiff Johnson that he was going to "ruin her 

life" and made other threats of a similar nature. Plaintiff Johnson took these 

threats seriously since Mr. Gee had an increasingly unstable personality, had been 

seen prowling around her house, explained to her how he was going to kill his ex-

wife and hide the body, and told her he had a hit list of people he was going to 

kill. 

IS. Defendant Gee's obscene and abusive comments and behavior were not 

welcomed or appreciated by Plaintiff Johnson, and altered the conditions of her employment by 

creating a hostile and offensive work environment. 

16. Faced with the prospect of having to continue to endure such conditions 

and the retaliation, ridicule, contempt and scorn that result from the efforts of herself and her 

husband to report inappropriate conduct, Plaintiff Johnson had no choice but to resign from her 

job. 

17. The sexual harassment, ongoing hostile work environment, gender 

discrimination and retaliation endured by Plaintiff 10hnson and her resulting constructive 

discharge from her employment with J. C. Penney were unlawful and constituted repeated and 

serious violations of the following: (l) Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 as codified and 
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amended, 42 U.S.c. § 2000e et seq. (hereinafter "Title VII"); and (2) the Idaho Human Rights 

Act as codified and amended, 67-5901 et seq. (hereinafter the "IHRA"). 

18. During her employment at J. C. Penney, Plaintiff Johnson received pay 

and benefits which were substantially greater than she was able to obtain after she was 

constructively discharged from her employment there. Therefore, as a direct and proximate 

result of the illegal and discriminatory conduct of the Defendants, Plaintiff Johnson has been 

damaged through the loss of wages and benefits. 

19. Defendant J.c. Penney engaged in unlawful intentional discrimination 

within the meaning of42 U.S.c. § 1981a and by its actions violated the provisions of Title VII 

and the IHRA. As a direct and proximate result, Plaintiff Johnson has suffered, is now suffering 

and will continue to suffer severe emotional pain, suffering, inconvenience, mental anguish, loss 

of enjoyment of life, embarrassment, and humiliation, for which she is entitled to recover 

compensatory damages. 

20. Defendant J.c. Penney engaged in discriminatory practices including those 

detailed in this Complaint with malice or with reckless disregard to the protected rights of 

Plaintiff Johnson. Therefore, Plaintiff Johnson will be entitled to amend her Complaint to 

include a claim for punitive damages after seeking appropriate leave of the Court. 

21. Plaintiff Johnson previously filed a Charge of Discrimination before the 

Idaho Human Rights Commission/EEOC. After its investigation ofthat Charge of 

Discrimination, and other related charges filed by Plaintiff Johnson's co-workers, the EEOC 

elected to file its Complaint in this matter. Plaintiff Johnson therefore sought leave to intervene 
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pursuant to Rule 24 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and 42 U.S.e. § 2000e-5(f)(I). 

Along with her October 30, 2000 Motion to Intervene, Plaintiff Johnson provided to the Court 

for filing and served upon Defendant J.e. Penney a Complaint substantially similar to that set 

forth in Section D of this Consolidated Complaint. The Court recently granted the Motion to 

Intervene. 

COUNT [[--INTENTIONAL INFLICTION OF EMOTIONAL DISTRESS 

22. Plaintiff Johnson incorporates by this reference the allegations of 

Paragraphs 1-21, above, as though the same were here set forth in full. 

23. The conduct of the Defendants was intentional or reckless, and extreme 

and outrageous. Such conduct directly and proximately caused severe emotional distress to 

Plaintiff Johnson. 

24. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants' conduct, PlaintiffJohnson 

has sustained substantial damages in an amount to be established at trial. 

25. The Defendants, and each of them, are jointly and severally liable to 

Plaintiff Johnson for their intentional infliction of emotional distress inflicted upon her and the 

damages resulting therefrom. The liability of the Defendant J. e. Penney arises in part by reason 

of its vicarious liability for the acts and omissions of its agent and employee, Christopher Gee, 

and for the further reason that he was a member of J. e. Penney management who had direct 

supervisory control over Plaintiff Johnson. The liability of Defendant J.e. Penney also arises in 

part by reason of its vicarious liability for the acts and omissions of its agent and employee, Pat 

Boyce, and for the further reason that she was a member of J .C. Penney Management who had 
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direct supervisory control over Defendant Gee. 

COUNT II1--NEGLIGENT INFLICTION OF EMOTIONAL DISTRESS 

26. Plaintiff Johnson incorporates by this reference the allegations of 

Paragraphs 1-25, above, as though the same were here set forth in full. 

27. By their actions and conduct set forth in this Complaint, the Defendants 

negligently inflicted and proximately and directly caused severe emotional distress to Plaintiff 

Johnson. Such emotional distress manifested itself by multiple physical symptoms including, but 

without limitation, loss of sleep, fatigue, severe headaches, reduced libido, stomach pains, loss of 

appetite and anxiety. 

28. The Defendants, and each of them, are jointly and severally liable to 

Plaintiff Johnson for their negligent infliction of emotional distress upon her and the damages 

resulting therefrom. The liability of the Defendant 1. e. Penney arises in part by reason of its 

vicarious liability for the acts and omissions of its agent and employee, Christopher Gee, and for 

the further reason that he was a member of J.e. Penney management who had direct supervisory 

control over Plaintiff Johnson. The liability of Defendant J.e. Penney also arises in part by 

reason of its vicarious liability for the acts and omissions of its agent and employee, Pat Boyce, 

and for the further reason that she was a member of J.e. Penney Management who had direct 

supervisory control over Defendant Gee. 

COUNT IV -- NEGLIGENT HIRING SUPERVISION 
AND/OR RETENTION 

29. Plaintiff Johnson incorporates by this reference the allegations of 

Paragraphs 1-28, above, as though the same were here set forth in full. 
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30. J. e. Penney and its managers had a duty to exercise at least reasonable 

care in the hiring, training, supervision and retention of J. e. Penney's employees and 

supervisory personnel. 

31. J.e. Penney and its managers failed to exercise such reasonable care and 

thereby directly and proximately caused foreseeable damage and injury to Plaintiff Johnson. 

COUNT V -- DEFAMATION. FALSE LIGHT. PUBLIC 
DISCLOSURE ABOUT PRIVATE FACTS 

32. Plaintiff Johnson incorporates by this reference the allegations of 

Paragraphs 1-31, above, as though the same were here set forth in full. 

33. Defendant Gee made false and defamatory statements to various third 

persons that Gee, Plaintiff Johnson's husband and Johnson had engaged in group sexual activity 

and made other false and defamatory statements to a similar effect. These statements constitute 

slander per se. 

34. Such statements were made of and concerning Plaintiff Johnson and her 

husband and were published and disseminated by Defendant Gee on multiple occasions to 

various third parties, including various of Plaintiff Johnson's co-workers. Such publication and 

dissemination occurred on multiple occasions during work hours in Defendant J.e.Penney's 

Idaho Falls store. 

35. The publication and dissemination of such statements placed Plaintiff 

Johnson in a false light in the public eye. 

36. In addition, Defendant Gee told others graphic and offensive stories of 

sexual encounters he had allegedly had with Plaintiff Johnson and bragged of his alleged sexual 
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conquests of her. The publication and dissemination of these statements occurred on multiple 

occasions during work hours in Defendant J.c.Penney's Idaho Falls store. 

37. To the limited extent such statements were true, such publication and 

dissemination constituted public disclosure of embarrassing private facts about Plaintiff Johnson. 

To the extent they were false, they were defamatory and placed Plaintiff Johnson in a false light 

in the public eye. 

38. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants' conduct, Plaintiff Johnson 

has sustained substantial damages in an amount to be established at trial. 

39. The Defendants, and each ofthcm, are jointly and severally liable to 

Plainti ff Johnson for such defamation, painting of Plainti ff Johnson in a false light in the public 

eye, and public disclosure of embarrassing private facts and the damages resulting therefrom. 

The liability of the Defendant J. C. Penney arises in part by reason of its vicarious liability for the 

acts and omissions of its agent and employee, Christopher Gee. 

A TTORNEYS FEES AND COSTS 

40. Plaintiff Johnson has been required to employ counsel to prosecute her 

claims against the Defendants and has incurred and will continue to incur substantial attorneys 

fees and costs, all of which she is entitled to recover from the Defendants under applicable law 

including, but without limitation, 42 U.S.c. §§ 1988(b) and 2000e(5)(K) and Idaho Code §§ 12-

120,12-121, and 67-5901 cl seq. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, Sarah Johnson, prays the judgment, order and decree of 

this Court as follows: 
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1. That judgment be entered in favor of Plaintiff 10hnson and against the 

Defendant 1. C. Penney on Counts I and IV, against Defendant Gee and lC. Penney jointly and 

severally on Count V and against all Defendants jointly and severally on Counts II and 1II of this 

Complaint; 

2. That Defendant J. C. Penney be ordered to pay Plaintiff Johnson front pay 

and benefits in an amount to be proven at trial; 

3. That Defendant 1. C. Penney be ordered to pay to Plaintiff 10hnson back 

pay and fringe benefits, including prejudgment interest thereon, less such amounts as may be 

appropriate based upon Plaintiff 10hnson 's other employment; 

4. That all Defendants be ordered to pay to Plaintiff Johnson compensatory 

damages for her emotional pain, suffering, inconvenience, mental anguish, loss of enjoyment of 

life, and other non-pecuniary losses in an amount to be determined at trial; 

5. That Plaintiff Johnson be granted leave to amend her Complaint to add a 

claim and prayer for punitive damages in accordance with applicable law; 

6. That Plaintiff Johnson bc awarded her costs of suit and reasonable 

attorneys fees incurred and to be incurred herein; and, 

7. That Plaintiff Johnson be awarded all such other and further relief as the 

Court may deem just and equitable. 

SECTION E - COMPLAINT OF CAROL MAYER 

COMES NOW the Plaintiff, Carol Mayer, by and through her counsel, the law 

finn of Hopkins Roden Crockett Hansen & Hoopes, PLLC, and for cause of action against the 
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above-named Defendants complains and alleges as follows: 

PARTIES, JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

I, Plaintiff Carol Mayer is, and at all times material hereto was, an individual 

residing in Bonneville County, Idaho, During the period when the various acts alleged in this 

Complaint occurred, Plaintiff Mayer was employed by the Defendant, 1. C. Penney Company, 

Inc., at its Idaho Falls, Idaho store. 

2. Defendant J. C. Penney Company, Inc., (hereinafter "J. C. Penney") is a 

Delaware corporation which at all times material hereto conducted business in the State of Idaho 

and maintained, operated and conducted business through the aforementioned Idaho Falls, Idaho 

store. 1.c. Penney is, and at all times material hereto was, an employer engaging in an industry 

affecting commerce, employing more than 500 employees. 

3. Defendants Christopher Gee and Pat Boyce are, and at times material 

hereto were individuals residing in Idaho. Defendant Gee was the Styling Salon Manager in the 

beauty salon ("Salon") at the Idaho Falls store until at least August of 1999 and continued to 

work in the Salon until at least the latter part of September of 1999. Defendant Boyce was the 

Store Manager and Christopher Gee's immediate supervisor. Defendant Gee exercised direct 

supervisory control over Becky Turner, Merribeth Parris Hicks, Sarah Johnson, Troy Hurley and 

various other employees in the Salon. The acts of Defendants Gee and Boyce during the course 

and scope of their employment with Defendant J. C. Penney, including those which serve as the 

basis for the claims stated in this Complaint, are imputed to 1. C. Penney. 

4. John and Jane Doe Defendants 1-5 are other persons or entities who are 
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liable or responsible to Plaintiff Mayer, either directly or on theories of vicarious liability, for the 

damages sought. The identity of the John and Jane Doe Defendants is presently unknown. At 

such time as the identity and status of the John and Jane Doe Defendants is or becomes known, 

Plaintiff Mayer shall seek leave of the Court to amend this Complaint to specifically name the 

John and Jane Doe Defendants, with such amendment to relate back to the date of filing herein. 

5. This Complaint and the causes of action it sets forth arise chiefly out of 

events, acts and occurrences which took place in Bonneville County, Idaho and which occurred 

during the period Plaintiff Mayer was employed by J. C. Penney at the Salon in its Idaho Falls, 

Idaho store. 

6. The Plaintiff, Equal Employment Opportunity Commission ("EEOC"), 

previously invoked this Court's jurisdiction pursuant to U.S.C. §§ 451,1331,1337,1343 and 

1345 and instituted this action pursuant to Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as codified 

and amended, 42 U.S.c. §2000(e) et seq. ('Title VII"), and Section 102 of the Civil Rights Act 

of 1991 as codified and amended, 42 U.S.c. §1981a ("Section 1981a"). This Court has subject 

matter jurisdiction over Plaintiff Mayer's Title VII and Section 1981a claims pursuant to 28 

U.S.c. § 1331. 

7. Plaintiff Mayer also alleges that Defendant J.c. Penney Gee and Boyce 

violated her rights under the Idaho Human Rights Act ("IHRA"), Idaho Code § 67-5901 et seq. 

Under 28 U.S.c. § 1367, this Court has supplemental jurisdiction over these IHRA claims and 

additionally for all other claims alleged in this Complaint that do not themselves involve a 

federal question within the meaning of 28 U.S.c. § 1331. 
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COUNT I--GENDER DISCRIMINATION. SEXUAL HARASSMENT 
AND CONSTRUCTIVE DISCHARGE 

8. Plaintiff Mayer incorporates by this reference the allegations of Paragraphs 

1-7, above, as though the same were here set forth in full. 

9. Plaintiff Mayer was employed by Defendant J.e. Penney at its Idaho Falls, 

Idaho store. Her work there commenced in 1985 and continued until October of 1999. She 

began work as a Loss Prevention Officer and became the Loss Prevention Manager in 

approximately 1994. She served as Loss Prevention Manager at that store until her demotion in 

mid-1999. 

10. Among other things, Plaintiff Mayer's job entailed receiving reports from 

employees about things that presented a risk of liability or loss to lC. Penney. Store employees 

were instructed that if they were victims of sexual harassment by other employees, they could 

report such matters to Mayer or any other manager in the store. 

11. When Plaintiff Mayer received reports of sexual harassment from 

employees she relayed them to the Store Manager. In some instances, Plaintiff Mayer suggested 

that the complaining employee report the complaint to the Store Manager in person. 

12. While she was the Loss Prevention Manager at le. Penney, Plaintiff 

Mayer received numerous complaints trom various employees about Defendant Gee. The 

complaints were that Gee frequently made vulgar, graphic, unsolicited comments of a highly 

sexual nature to his subordinates in the Salon and frequently requested sexual favors from those 

subordinates, often in exchange for work privileges. In addition, these complaints included 

frequent reports that Gee treated unfavorably those employees in the Salon who did not go along 
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with his sexual conversations and demands. 

13. In addition to reports she received from employees in the Salon, Plaintiff 

Mayer also personally observed and was subjected to the hostile work environment Gee was 

engendering at the Idaho Falls store. For instance, Gee frequently made comments in Mayer's 

presence about the breasts or buttocks of females like "she's got a nice set on her" or "she's 

really stacked," statements about women like "I wish I could get her into bed", or "I sure wish I 

could do her," statements about what percentage of his relationships were homosexual and what 

percentage were heterosexual, and so forth. 

14. Plaintiff Mayer received reports from employees in the Salon that Gee's 

behavior was actually discriminating against those who did not go along with Mr. Gee's 

inappropriate conduct. Plaintiff Mayer verbally repeated the complaints to Pat Boyce, the Store 

Manager in the Idaho Falls store. Boyce did not ask Mayer to make any further investigation or 

take any additional action. 

15. In early 1999, Plaintiff Mayer received a report that Gee had invited 

female subordinates to join him in the back room at the Salon, and then pulled his pants down to 

show them his recently pierced penis. Mayer immediately reported the incident to Store Manager 

Pat Boyce. In response to Mayer's report, Boyce suggested that perhaps J.C. Penney did not need 

a Loss Prevention Manager at its Idaho Falls store and mentioned the possible elimination of 

Mayer's position. 

16. During the spring and early summer of 1999, additional reports about Gee 

and the hostile environment he was engendering in the Salon were made to Plaintiff Mayer by 
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various employees in the Salon. Plaintiff Mayer forwarded these along to Boyce but the situation 

did not improve and Gee continued to manage the Salon. 

17. By mid-1999, Mayer had grown extremely frustrated at the failure of J.e. 

Penney management and particularly Store Manager Pat Boyce to timely address in an 

appropriate manner the work environment Gee was creating in the Salon or to respond to the 

concerns about Gee which were raised by Mayer and the Salon employees. This frustration grew 

as the problem continued to fester. 

18. During this time frame, Mayer began to feel other adverse impacts as 

well. For instance, Mayer had a meeting with Ramona Hereford, J.C. Penney's District Loss 

Prevention Manager. Hereford told Mayer during the meeting that Mayer "was not a Loss 

Prevention Manager" and that she "would never be one." 

19. On or about June 6, 1999, Store Manager Boyce told Mayer that she was 

not the Loss Prevention Manager although Mayer had served as a Loss Prevention Manager since 

1994, a fact reflected by J.e. Penney's own performance evaluations of Mayer. 

20. On or about June 16, 1999, Store Manager Boyce informed Mayer that 

Mayer's performance appraisal rating would be downgraded from a "2" to a "3". A couple of 

days later, J.e. Penney demanded that Plaintiff Mayer sign a blank performance appraisal in 

which the rating of"3" had already been filled in. No legitimate reason was ever given to Mayer 

for the decision to downgrade her rating or its requiring her to sign the blank performance 

appraisal. 

21. Commencing shortly after PlaintitTMayer's reporting ofMr. Gee's 
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inappropriate behavior to Pat Boyce in early 1999 and continuing through the date of her 

constructive discharge, Store Manager Boyce made various statements which Plaintiff Mayer 

understood to be part ofa concerted effort to intimidate or force her to leave J.e.Penney. For 

instance, Boyce spoke repeatedly about discussions she claimed she had with other members of 

management about doing away with Plaintiff Mayer's position and claimed that senior 

management had asked her whether she really needed a Loss Prevention Manager at the Idaho 

Falls store. Repeated statements about the need to cut Plaintiff Mayer's job and to save her 

salary costs were also made during this time frame. 

22. In addition, Mayer's reasonable requests for guidance, assistance and 

resources to adequately perform her loss prevention and other duties were also denied. Mayer 

accordingly perceived that she was being set up to fail in her job. 

23. J.e. Penney management also complained during this time period about 

Mayer's "police mentality" and made other disparaging comments about her. Mayer perceived 

this criticism to be at least in part a rebuke for her vigilance, zeal and effort in reporting and 

pursuing reports of discrimination and harassment received from Mr. Gee's subordinates. 

24. Shortly before her work with J.e. Penney terminated, a person claiming to 

be an attorney for some of the former employees in the Salon contacted Plaintiff Mayer. When 

Plaintiff Mayer reported to Store Manager Boyce the fact that she had been contacted by that 

person, Boyce became very upset with Mayer. 

25. Faced with the cumulative actions of J.e. Penney and its management 

outlined above, Plaintiff Mayer finally concluded she had no other option but to cease working 
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for J.C.Penney. Her employment there terminated in October of 1999. 

26. The sexual harassment, ongoing hostile work environment, gender 

discrimination and retaliation endured by Plaintiff Mayer and her resulting constructive discharge 

from her employment with J. e. Penney were unlawful and constituted repeated and serious 

violations of the following: (1) Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 as codified and 

amended, 42 U.S.e. § 2000e et seq. (hereinafter 'Title VII"); and (2) the Idaho Human Rights 

Act as codified and amended, 67-5901 et seq. (hereinafter the "IHRA"). 

27. During her employment at J. C. Penney, Plaintiff Mayer received pay and 

benefits which were substantially greater than she was able to obtain after she was constructively 

discharged from her employment there. Therefore, as a direct and proximate result of the illegal 

and discriminatory conduct of the Defendants, Plaintiff Mayer has been damaged through the 

loss of wages and benefits. 

28. Defendant J.e. Penney engaged in unlawful intentional discrimination 

within the meaning of42 U.S.e. § 1981a and by its actions violated the provisions of Title VII 

and the IHRA. As a direct and proximate result, Plaintiff Mayer has suffered, is now suffering 

and will continue to suffer severe emotional pain, suffering, inconvenience, mental anguish, loss 

of enjoyment of life, embarrassment, and humiliation, for which she is entitled to recover 

compensatory damages. 

29. Defendant J.e. Penney engaged in discriminatory practices including those 

detailed in this Complaint with malice or with reckless disregard to the protected rights of 

Plaintiff Mayer. Therefore, Plaintiff Mayer will be entitled to amend her Complaint to include a 
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claim for punitive damages after seeking appropriate leave of the Court. 

30. Plaintiff Mayer previously filed a Charge of Discrimination before the 

Idaho Human Rights Commission/EEOC. After its investigation of that Charge of 

Discrimination, and others filed by Plaintiff Mayer's co-workers, the EEOC elected to file its 

Complaint in this matter. Plaintiff Mayer therefore sought leave to intervene pursuant to Rule 

24 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and 42 U.S.C. § 2000c-5(f)(l). Along with her 

October 30, 2000 Motion to Intervene, Plaintiff Mayer provided to the Court for filing and served 

upon Defendant J.c. Penney a Complaint substantially similar to that set forth in Section E of 

this Consolidated Complaint. The Court recently granted the Motion to Intervene. 

COUNT lIn INTENTIONAL INFLICTION OF EMOTIONAL DISTRESS 

31. Plaintiff Mayer incorporates by this reference the allegations of Paragraph 

1-30, above, as though the same were here set forth in full. 

32. The conduct of the Defendants was intentional or reckless, and extreme 

and outrageous. Such conduct directly and proximately caused severe emotional distress to the 

PlaintitT Mayer. 

33. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants' conduct, Plaintiff Mayer 

has sustained substantial damages in an amount to be established at trial. 

34. The Defendants, and each of them, are jointly and severally liable to the 

Plaintiff Mayer for their intentional infliction of emotional distress inflicted upon her and the 

damages resulting therefrom. The liability of the Defendant 1. C. Penney arises in part by reason 

of its vicarious liability for the acts and omissions of its agents and employees, Christopher Gee 
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and Pat Boyce, and for the further reason that both Gee and Boyce were members of J. e. Penney 

management, with Boyce having supervisory control over Plaintiff Mayer. 

COUNT lII--NEGLIGENT INFLICTION OF EMOTIONAL DISTRESS 

35. Plaintiff Mayer incorporates by this reference the allegations of Paragraphs 

1-34, above, as though the same were here set forth in full. 

36. By their actions and conduct set forth in this Complaint, the Defendants 

negligently intlicted and proximately and directly caused severe emotional distress to Plaintiff 

Mayer. Such emotional distress manifested itself by multiple physical symptoms. 

37. The Defendants, and each of them, are jointly and severally liable to 

Plaintiff Mayer for their intentional int1iction of emotional distress int1icted upon her and the 

damages resulting therefrom. The liability of the Defendant J. e. Penney arises in part by reason 

of its vicarious liability for the acts and omissions of its agents and employees, Christopher Gee 

and Pat Boyce, and for the further reason that both Gee and Boyce were members of J. C. Penney 

management, with Boyce having supervisory control over Plaintiff Mayer. 

COUNT IV -- NEGLIGENT HIRING. SUPERVISION 
AND/OR RETENTION 

38. Plaintiff Mayer incorporates by this reference the allegations of Paragraphs 

1-37, above, as though the same were here set forth in full. 

39. 1. C. Penney and its managers had a duty to exercise at least reasonable 

care in the hiring, training, supervision and retention of J. C. Penney's employees and 

supervisory personnel. 

40. J.e. Penney and its managers failed to exercise such reasonable care and 
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thereby directly and proximately caused foreseeable damage and injury to Plaintiff Mayer. 

ATTORNEYS FEES AND COSTS 

41. Plaintiff Mayer has been required to employ counsel to prosecute her 

claims against the Defendants and has incurred and will continue to incur substantial attorneys 

fees and costs, all of which she is entitled to recover from the Defendants under applicable law 

including, but without limitation, 42 U.S.c. §§ 1988(b) and 2000e(5)(K) and Idaho Code §§ 12-

120,12-121, and 67-5901 et seq. 

WHEREFORE, the Plaintiff, Carol Mayer, prays the judgment, order and decree 

of this Court as follows: 

1. That judgment be entered in favor of Plaintiff Mayer and against the 

Defendant J. C. Penney on Counts I and IV and against all Defendants jointly and severally on 

Counts II and III of this Complaint; 

2. That Defendant J. C. Penney be ordered to pay the Plaintiff front pay and 

benefits in an amount to be proven at trial; 

3. That Defendant J. C. Penney be ordered to pay to Plaintiff Mayer back pay 

and fringe benefits, including prejudgment interest thereon, less such amounts as may be 

appropriate based upon her other employment; 

4. That all Defendants be ordered to pay to Plaintiff Mayer compensatory 

damages for her emotional pain, suffering, inconvenience, mental anguish, loss of enjoyment of 

life, and other non-pecuniary losses in an amount to be determined at trial; 

5. That Plaintiff Mayer be granted leave to amend her Complaint to add a 
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claim and prayer for punitive damages in accordance with applicable law; 

6. That Plaintiff Maycr be awarded her costs of suit and reasonable attorneys 

fees incurred and to be incurred herein; and, 

7. That Plaintiff Mayer be awarded all such other and further relief as the 

Court may decm just and equitable. 

DA TED this/ 7"1: day ()f~'!j'-"'""""""-~· f--~_/~~~-' 200 1. 
( . 

P EN CRO~KETT 
N & H OI1ES, PLLC 

~' .. \~ 
BY~~~~~f--*-~~~~~ __ 

Steven K. Brown 

B~ 
Reed E. Andrus 
Attorneys for Intervening Plaintiffs 
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DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 

Becky Turner, Merribeth Parris Hicks, Troy Hurley, Sarah Johnson and Carol 

Mayer hereby demand a trial by jury as to all issues triable to ajury in this matter and for an 

advisory jury as to all equitable issues to assist the Court in dete[(l'lining those matters. , , 
EN CROCKETT 

,~~~~'(/.PES,~LLC 
\ 
I 

\ .~l.~" 
BY~~ ____ M-~~=-________ __ 

Reed E. Andrus 
Attorneys for Intervening Plaintiffs 
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